HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
July 27, 2008
1:13 p. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:13:07 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair

Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair

Representati ve Ri chard Foster

Representative Les Gara (Testified via Tel econference)
Representati ve M ke Hawker

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e

Representative Mke Kelly

Representative Mary Nel son

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Harry Crawf ord
Representative Bill Thomas Jr.

ALSO PRESENT

Kate Troll, Executive Director, Al aska Conservation
Al'liance, Juneau; Meer Kohler, President & CEO Al aska
Village Electric Cooperative; Julie Kitka, Al aska Federation
of Natives; Representative Andrea Doll; Senator Joe Thonas

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Doris Cabana, Homer; Paul Kendall, Anchorage; Del Conrad,
CEOQ, Anchorage; Dr. Vi Cerald, Honer;

HB 4005 An Act anendi ng the power cost equalization
program repealing the exclusion fromeligibility
for power cost equalization for certain power
projects that take their power from hydroelectric
facilities, and anending the definition of
‘eligible electric utility' as it applies to the
power cost equalization program and the grant
program for small power projects for utility
i nprovenents; and providing for an effective date.

HB 4005 was HEARD & HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 4006 An Act authorizing, as a tenporary rebate of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



state resources to certain state residents,
paynents to assist in neeting heating costs under
the federal and state heating assistance prograns;
and providing for an effective date.

HB 4006 was HEARD & HELD in Commttee for further
consi deration

#hb4005

#hb4006

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 4005

An Act anending the power cost equalization program
repealing the exclusion fromeligibility for power cost
equal i zation for certain power projects that take their
power from hydroelectric facilities, and anending the
definition of "eligible electric utility' as it applies
to the power cost equalization program and the grant
program for smal | power projects for utility
i nprovenents; and providing for an effective date.

HB 4005 was HEARD & HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HOUSE BI LL NO. 4006

An Act authorizing, as a tenporary rebate of state
resources to certain state residents, paynents to
assist in neeting heating costs under the federal and
state heating assistance prograns; and providing for an
effective date.

HB 4006 was HEARD & HELD in Conmmttee for further
consi derati on.

1:15: 53 PM

KATE TROLL, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA  CONSERVATI ON
ALLI ANCE, JUNEAU, voi ced support of funding for power cost
equal i zation (PCE) and LIHEAP to provide energy assistance
for the entire state of Al aska. She signified that the
economc welfare of the villages and rural comunities is
bei ng threatened by the high energy costs. Additionally, the
Al aska Conservation Alliance w shed to convey the nessage
through M. Troll, to “make a connection to energy
conservation” throughout the state. She noted the handout
(Energy Cost Relief and Energy Conservation), whi ch
indicates ways to pronote energy conservation (copy on
file.) She encouraged |long term sol utions.

1: 20: 24 PM

Representative Nelson stated that the average person
eligible for power cost equalization uses |ess that 400 kW
per nonth. In conparison, the average electric energy use

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



per person in Anchorage is 750 kWwh. She stated that
conservation has been taken to heart in the village areas.

1:21:11 PM

Representative Kelly asked if the Alaska Conservation
Al liance woul d support alternative heating source efforts in
both the rural and urban areas.

Ms. Troll replied that the Al aska Conservation Alliance does
support any type of technology neasure that offers
alternatives.

1: 22: 59 PM

Representative Kelly comented on the Susitna Hydroelectric
project and the Al aska Conservation Al liance’s opposition in
the past. He asked if the Alliance would now support those
proj ects. Ms. Troll responded that the Alliance is
reviewing Susitna in relationship to Railbelt energy needs.
She announced that a firm position would be taken, follow ng
t he current revi ew. The Alliance currently Vi ews
hydroel ectric power as part of the renewabl e energy m x.

1: 25: 49 PM

Representative Gara appreciated the positive proposals
submtted by the environnental organization. He asked if
the Al aska Conservation Alliance would support additional
funds to enhance the ability to nmeet renewabl e energy needs
in the future. Ms. Troll replied that the Al aska
Conservation Alliance absolutely woul d support the neasure.

1:27:47 PM

Representative Gara commented that Ms. Troll should not be
held responsible for the past actions of +the Al aska
Conservation Alliance. Representative Kelly noted his
positive treatnent of the current environnmental group.

1: 28: 50 PM

MEER  KOHLER, PRESI DENT  CEQ, ALASKA VI LLAGE ELECTRIC
COOPERATI VE, testified in support of HB 4005 and HB 4006
Al aska Village Electric Cooperative (AVEC) is a non-profit,
menber-owned electric utility serving 53 villages in rural
Al aska. She described that “although our villages are small
our conbi ned popul ation is 22,000, about the same as Bet hel,
Cordova, D llingham Kotzebue, None and Unalaska rolled
together.” She provided nmenbers with witten testinony (copy
on file):

AVEC operates 48 power plants and 47 bulk fuel tank

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



farms. Qur costs of operation are extrenely high
because of the lack of efficiencies of scale. Qur per
capita electricity consunption is 242 kW per nonth,
conpared with 542 in Bethel and over 1,000 in Anchorage
or Fairbanks, reflecting the inpact of the higher |evel
of commerce associated with ower cost electricity.

Consunption has al ways been very |ow, because the true
cost of electricity in the villages has always been
high. It is high because we must have one power plant
and tank farm per every 400 in population — conpare
that with one power plant for Bethel's 6,000
popul ation, or three power plants for Fairbanks, or
five for Anchorage.

We support expansion of the PCE program to include
any community contending with very high costs of
electricity because we know how crippling it is to
contend with such costs even as other energy costs
are catapulting at the sane tine.

W respectfully protest the inplenentation of a
seasonal kWwh  limt because, despite its good
intentions, it would actually cost all of our current
PCE beneficiary’s noney, rather than increasing their
assistance by 23% as suggested in the nodel. AVEC
Cordova, Inside Passage Electric, Kotzebue, Naknek,
Nome and MNushagak Electric in Dllingham have al
conduct ed anal yses of the change and all have concl uded
that this change will be detrinental to consuners.

Instead, we request that this conmttee consider
restoring the eligible PCE cap to 700 kW per nonth.
This is the level at which PCE operated for the first
15 years — from 1984 to 1999. It represents the
average kWwh consuned by «citizens of Anchorage,
Fai rbanks and Juneau. \Wen the programwas cut back in
1999, eligible residential kW fell by about 22%

Since eligible kWh today is al nbst unchanged from 1999,

the nost likely inpact is that the residential kW
covered would go back up by the 22% that it declined
ei ght years ago. The legislative analysis previously
presented by staff projects that the 300/700 seasonal

cap would result in additional kW usage of about 23%
over current levels. The financial inpact of a change
to the flat 700 kWh cap should be identical to the
seasonal cap's inpact as cal culated by staff.

In May of this year, the AVEC board adopted a
resolution declaring a fuel cost energency. That
resolution was sent to all legislators and a copy is
attached to this testinony. The crisis we declared two

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



nmonths ago is comng to its predicted peak right now

W are two thirds of the way into our fuel delivery
season and have fuel bills of $16 mllion to pay for

and will have another $12 mllion due within the next
six weeks. Qur fuel bill last year was $14 mllion,
and we are only half way through collecting those
noni es. We have an energency anmendnent to our I|ine

of credit, raising it to $15 million. The cost of
that borrowing will add another two cents a kWh to our
already high electricity rates. There is no state fund
avai lable to borrow fromto purchase our fuel and the
small amount available in the AEA's fuel |oan
program wl| not cover five percent of rura
Al aska' s needs.

AVEC has proposed having the State provide assistance
to cap the delivered cost of fuel for generating
electricity at $10 per mllion btu. Al aska Power
Associ ation endorses this approach and al so advocates
for the State providing no-cost loans to cover this
year's fuel purchase. Sonething needs to happen
soon, or rural Alaska is going to enter this wnter
wi t hout adequate fuel on hand to see them through the
season. W wll then be faced with the even nore
crippling cost of flying fuel in on an energency basis.

This is not tenable, especially when our state is
bursting at the seans from revenues gleaned from the
bur geoni ng cost of a barrel of Al askan crude oil.

Pl ease support the changes proposed to PCE, with the
exception of restoring the 700 kWwh cap. It is a stop
gap neasure as we continue our quest to build w nd
systens across our villages and tap energing
technol ogi es to reduce our dependence on diesel fuel

1: 34: 40 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked if it is crucial that there be one
power plant and tank farm for every 400 in popul ation. M.
Kohl er answered that the long termplan is to tie villages
together, by building mcro grids to connect them The
grids could eventually connect, formng regional grids,
which could then be connected to form a statewide grid.
This would allow villages to tap into nore renewabl e energy.
She stated that this connection would eventually elimnate
the need for power plants and tank farns, whi ch
unfortunately, would also elimnate crucial jobs.

1: 36: 17 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if sonme of the proposed m ning
projects would facilitate the mcro grid process.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



1: 36: 44 PM

Ms. Kohler explained that the mning projects had been
considered years ago by Novista Light and Power. She
informed that the problem was that 200 nega-watts of power
are necessary for heating the villages, which is nuch nore
than the projects could provide.

1:38: 01 PM
Representative Kelly asked if transmission lines were
available to allow for the connection lines. M. Kohler

responded that AVEC was working on those devel opnents. She
said that they pronote about eight or nine potential tie
lines for interconnection. She stated that AVEC has pursued
in vain, funding fromthe legislature for the devel opnent of
t he proposed mcro projects.

1: 40: 19 PM

Representati ve Hawker asked Ms. Kohler to shed nore light on
her expressed concern about I|egislative funding for the
revol ving bul k fuel acquisition loan. M. Kohler responded
that they want to be sure that they take advantage of the
| ow cost of fuel early in the season. She pointed out that
in years past, sonme villages placed their orders in August,
which was too late to borrow t he $500 thousand [per vill age]
needed to barge the fuel. She stated that her concern is
that she did not want to fly fuel in because there were no
| oan funds avail abl e. Representative Hawker asked Ms. Kohl er
to quantify the deficiency in the revolving | oan fund before
the end of special session. Ms Kohler opined that $35 - $40
mllion would be necessary, as opposed to the now avail abl e
five mllion dollars.

1: 43: 35 PM

Representati ve Hawker stated that the conmttee would try to
set up an additional neeting on the topic of the revolving
loan fund wth Alaska Energy Authority Director Steve
Haagenson.

1:44:19 PM

Representative Kelly focused on the 52.5 cents cap and asked
why the state would consider going that high. Ms. Kohl er
replied that the Al aska Power Associ ation (APA) supports the
PCE cap change to 72.5 cents. That nunber was determ ned by
| ooking at the fuel price when the PCE program first began
in 1984, which was at $1.17 a gallon. They then escal ated
that nunmber with 3% inflation, arriving at an expected price
of $2.30 per gallon. For every 50 cent increase cost in
fuel, an increase in kW of about 4 cents is seen. She

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



continued to explain the fornula used to arrive at 72.5
cents: “$2.50 divided by 50 gives you five, tines four gives
you twenty, add to 52.5 gives you 72.5".

1: 46: 28 PM

Representative Kelly asked if the nunber was 72.5 cents.
Ms. Kohler replied yes, adding that the proposed 12.5 kW
was significantly higher than what is currently enbedded in
the PCE statute. The generation efficiency in statute is a
very high standard. There is room to incentivize
alternative energy. She continued that the wuse of
alternative energy increases the efficiency per gallon of
fuel.

1:47: 54 PM

Representative Nel son inquired about raising the cap by $2.
She thought that the prices would never decrease in rural
Al aska. Sone places are now paying over a $1 per kW. She
felt the prices were outrageous. There is recognition that
the villages with those excessively high rates are in the
mnority, however they nust be accommopdat ed. Ms. Kohl er
agreed that there are a fewvillages in that situation. She
stated that AVEC pronoted that future changes in the cost of
fuel be acconpanied by a simlar adjustnment so that if the
cost noves higher or |ower, then the cap would al so float up
and down. In the case of these villages paying excessively
high prices per kW, the conflict is with the perception
that the cap is sonmehow encouragi ng excessi ve consunption of
electricity. There should be extra attention paid to how
those costs can be reduced. She thought that with the new
generating system that they had in those villages, they
shoul d now be seeing | ower costs.

1: 50: 55 PM

Representati ve Hawker referenced the cap of the PCE anpunt
and the discrimnation in the determ ning nethodol ogy. He
commented on the econony of scale because certain providers
are serving relatively few households for conparable costs.
Ms. Kohler agreed that this is a dilemm. She stated that
AVEC serves a couple of villages that have only 20

househol ds. She maintained that because AVEC has brought
together 53 comunities there are sonme nodest econom es of
scal e. She nentioned individual fuel costs; villages do

have options to band together with others to help reduce
costs. She encouraged that nmechani sm

1: 53: 57 PM

Representative Hawker asked if the legislature should
encourage nore collective organization of power statew de.
Ms. Kohler noted that it can work, pointing out that they

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



are a small village utility. She reiterated that their
approach does work.

1:55:10 PM

Representative Nelson asked if the AVEC board has to okay
communities comng into the coop. She comented that “if
they are in such dire straits your board has refused
menbership to certain communities.” M. Kohler stated that
was correct. She cited a recent exanple of refusal to the

village of Tul uksak; the system was in such a poor state of
repair that a large infusion of investnent was going to be
necessary to bring them up to operating standards and AVEC
did not believe that their nenbership should pick up the
t ab. She stressed that AVEC was willing to do it if the
state would bring the system up to a condition where we
could bring it into our system She pointed out that it was
the state’ s decision not to upgrade the system

1: 56: 33 PM

Representative Nelson reiterated that villages can only join
can at their (AVEC board s) discretion.

1: 57:10 PM

Representative Hawker asked how many households live in
Tul uksak village and what would be the capital construction
cost to provide a barrier. Ms. Kohler observed 500 people

live in Tul uksak. She renmenbered that their project had not
been well operated. She informed that it was under size in
capacity. It was not capable of handling the power needs of
t he school, nor did it have a tank farm avail able. AVEC put
together a list to bring it up to pare. She thought that
estimate was about $2-$2.5 nillion.

1:58: 57 PM

Representative Joule asked how many villages are operating
their own electrical utility. MVs. Kohl er answer ed
approxi mately 75.

2: 00: 49 PM

Co- Chair Meyer questioned the proposal on the bill to change
from 500 kWh per nonth to a split 700/ 300 kWh per nonth. M.
Kohl er answered that the analysis done by the Legislative
Finance Division had predicted that with the 700/300 split,
eligible residential kWh would go up by 23% M. Kohler
disagreed with the prediction and felt that eligibility
actually falls by 5 - 10% She proposed that sinply
restoring the cap to 700 kwWwh woul d be equitable because it
would represent the average wusage 1in the conpared
communities of Anchorage, Fairbanks, and Juneau. She stated

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



that it would not increase the usage in the sunmer, but
woul d al l ow for nore coverage in the wnter

Co-Chair Meyer stated that he appreciated the feedback. He
guestioned if they were to bunp up to 700 kW, would that
keep people from conserving. M. Kohler responded that she
would like to see a program that encouraged the devel opnent
of renewable and alternative energy in the village/rural
areas. She pointed out that AVEC is a firm advocate of the
power cost nonitor plan discussed by Ms. Troll.

2: 05:46 PM

Co- Chair Meyer asked about conputers, assum ng they probably
use a lot of electricity. Ms. Kohler stated that conputers
were actually conservative, since they went into sleep or
| ow power node, when not in use. She explained that using
power strips to control electricity usage was al so hel pful.

2: 06: 52 PM

Representative Joule asked about the 700 kW versus the
700/ 300 kWh split. He enphasized that what the conmttee was
di scussi ng was resi denti al el ectric use ver sus
commer ci al / school use. He asked if there had been a change
of consunption in Nelson Island Communities with the use of
wi nd power. Ms. Kohler responded that she had not noticed
any change in energy consunption. Representative Joule
deduced that the areas hardest hit don’'t take advantage of
sonme flexibility.

2:08: 52 PM

Representative Kelly asked if the adm nistration was wor ki ng
on increasing the financing cap. M. Kohler responded that
as a practical matter there is no other source of funds

wi thout an appropriation from the admnistration. She
t hought that it would be easy to put noney in a revolving
| oan fund. She expressed that she would |like to see a cap on
the interest rate charged. Representative Kelly pointed out
that the legislature was there to address an energency and
he felt that noving the cap nade sense.

2:12: 04 PM

Representative Gara commented that perhaps a tie in would
benefit the rural areas, due to the potential for wnd
power. He asked if AVEC could apply for a renewabl e energy
project, for the purpose of tying in rural comunities.
Ms. Kohler answered that it was her understanding the
renewabl e energy fund included noney for intertie projects;
she does know that nothing had happened yet with the $50
mllion that was appropriated. Representative Gara asked Ms.
Kohler to review the |anguage on the renewabl e energy fund,

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



and |l ook for a solution. He also asked if there would be a
benefit to raising the anmount for the |last three years of
t he renewabl e energy fund, currently funded at $50 mllion a
year. M. Kohler responded in support of the idea because
AVEC had at least three years worth of projects that were
ready and in need of this funding.

2:15: 30 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze said that he wanted the nonies given to
districts to be equitable. Ms Kohler did not disagree.

2:17: 33 PM

Representative Joule asked if the recomended 72.5 cent fuel
cap (versus the proposed 52.5 cent cap) was based on
information from small comunities or from broader Al aska.
Ms. Kohl er responded that the nunber was extrapol ated based
on the cost of fuel when the PCE was first instituted.

2:19: 09 PM

JULIE KITKA, ALASKA FEDERATION OF NATIVES, responded to
earlier testinonies. In regard to the issue of energency
fly-in of fuel, she suggested that the commttee ask the
state and the energency response office for a detailed cost
of the last three to five years. She al so suggested,
inviting the head of the Denali Comr ssion’s energy program
to testify as well as the federal co-chair of the Denali
Comm ssion with the purpose of answering specific questions
proposed earlier regarding bulk fuel. She thought that the
Denali Comm ssion could also give details about cooperative
buyi ng agreenents and cooperative nmanagenent agreenents
anmong villages. She observed that there was talk of
coordi nating federal agencies and negotiating a bulk fuel
purchase agreenent with the Departnent of Defense in a past
Denal i Conmm ssion neeting.

2:22: 59 PM

Representative Kelly asked about any possible inpedinent to
wood burning fromthe Division of State Forestry. M. Kitka
replied that she was not aware of any such reports. She
expressed that she was in favor of wood burning and the
t echnol ogy avail able to enhance the process.

2:24: 59 PM

Ms. Kitka was encouraged with sone of the new innovative
fuel burning projects. There is a range of new, |ow cost
i deas that could be inplenented relatively quickly.

2:25: 03 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



Representative Kelly requested news of any blocks issued in
the future regarding the burning of wood. M. Kitka agreed
to report any information on this subject.

2:25: 51 PM

DORI S CABANA, HOMER testified via teleconference, in favor
of both HB 4005 and HB 4006. She expressed support for al

people in the state. She stated that her famly does
commercial fishing, which has been hit hard wth the
increased cost in fuel. She urged that the | egislation nove
quickly as the need is critical. She felt that the
assi stance should not be attached to the Permanent Fund
D vidend (PFD). Many seniors and famlies wth snal

children need to be hel ped quickly. She worried about those
that will “fall through the cracks this wnter”. She

i ndi cated support and appreciation for the |egislature and
for all of the bills proposed by the governor.

2: 30: 00 PM

PAUL KENDALL, ANCHORAGE, testified via teleconference. He
opposed previous comments and the cost associated wth

energy assistance. He thought that all the previous
testinmony was “fear based”. He felt that the problem stens
from the | eadership. “The source of the problem is people

with an interest in the fossil fuel distribution network.”

M. Kendall recomended a 90-day energy review and energy
form which should occur in Anchorage. He mai ntai ned that
there are too many parties that need to have accountability
and stressed that the focus should be on the whole. He
worried that the state wll nove toward bankruptcy by
providing “those people the nobney”. He proposed that each
dwel | i ng have an energy allotnent and then be encouraged to
incentivize. He asserted that the producers and distributors
must be accountabl e. “If they refuse, those producers
shoul d be sued.”

AT EASE: 2:43: 45 PM
RECONVENED: 2:53:49 PM

DEL CONRAD, CEO RURAL ALASKA FUEL SERVICES, MANAGER BULK
FUEL BRIDGE LOAN PROGRAM ANCHORAGE testified via

t el econf erence. He commented on the anount of noney that
has been lent on outstanding |oans and cash pending | oans
for the wupcomng fuel season. He addressed the |oan
programis status. Last year, the bulk fuel bridge |oan
program |l oaned $2.3 million dollars. This year there has
been an increase in autumm deliveries, neaning that $2.3
mllion dollars wll not be enough. He asserted that | ast
year’s amount wll not neet the needs. The bridge |oan

programis set up so that only borrowers turned down by AEA

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



becone eligible. He stated that in order to neet the needs
this year, there will need to be greater funding. He hoped
to see an increase in the program of about $5 mllion, in
order to neet the needs, with the increased cost of fuel
deliveries. Currently, there is a loan |imt anount of
$500, 000 dol | ars. He requested an increase to $750,000 in
the loan limts.

2:58: 00 PM

Representative Nel son asked if the requested increase to $5
mllion was truly adequate. M. Conrad thought that $5
mllion would be sufficient for this year and noted that it
depends on the price of oil. Fuel prices are tracking
closely with what is happening with the worldw de price of
oil. Wth oil up over $150 a barrel, $5 mllion dollars wll
probably be a questionable anount. He thought that $5
mllion should be the mninum and he was nore confortable
with $7.5 mllion dollars.

2:59: 39 PM

Representati ve Hawker asked M. Conrad about the |oan |oss
history. M. Conrad pointed out that they are working with
borrower’s that are not able to borrow noney from AEA
There have been “slow’ borrowers. Everyone has ultimtely
pai d back their loans. The programdiffers in that it goes
out to the comunities and reviews the cost matrixes to
cover all costs. Sonetinmes the borrowers run out of cash

because the charged prices were too |ow Sonetinmes credit

collection policies are devel oped. The issues are
identified and provide better acceptance in addressing the
actual costs. Sonme | oans have been delinquent, yet none
ever |ost.
3:02: 03 PM

DR VI GERALD, HOVER testified in support of HB 4005 and HB
4006 via teleconference. She added her support for the PCE
bills and noted her appreciation of the |egislature’ s work.

3:03:11 PM

HB 4005 and HB 4006 were HEARD & HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

#

3:04:52 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:05 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 07/27/08 1:13 P. M



